FY 2017 QRIS IMPROVEMENT GRANT – FUND CODE 764
BID#:  BD-17-1037-1CEN0-C0000-12142
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
APRIL 19, 2017



COMMBUYS

Q1. Are we "bidders" or "vendors" or both?
A1 For a grant opportunity that requires online submission, you must register as a COMMBUYS Vendor to create and submit a response. 

Q2. I`m a Childcare Educator and would like to apply for this grant. I have a couple of questions. How do I apply? Do we need to register to www.COMMBUYS.com first? I already did this but I have not been able to find the grant after I followed the steps. I do see other grants but not this one.
A2 We encourage you to look at the job aid for COMMBUYS. 
Below is Information from the COMMBUYS Job Aid: Searching for Grant Opportunities 

There are several ways to search for Grant Opportunities. 
Bid # - entering the last four (4) digits of the bid number will bring you directly to the grant opportunity 
Bid Description – use the word “grant” to search for grant opportunities that have used “grant” as part of their description - this may result in a high volume search results display, use with another search criteria to narrow down results. 
Bid Opening Date – use the calendar to display grant opportunities by bid opening date; i.e. submission deadline 
Organization/Department – select an organization or department to search specific grant opportunities, organized by COMMBUYS ID number 
UNSPSC- Grant Opportunity Code - use to retrieve all Grant opportunities. Select the Grant Opportunity Code (00-00) from the UNSPSC Segment-Family Dropdown Box. It will be first on the list and the Class Code (00) from the UNSPSC Class Code Dropdown Box. 
Entered Date – use the calendar to display grant opportunities by the date entered into the system 
If you have additional questions, please contact the COMMBUYS Help Desk at 1-888-627-8283 or COMMBUYS@state.ma.us.

Q3. When you are referring to the packing slips to be sent in by 5/4? Are we going to receive if granted the durable good prior to be able to send to you by the given date? 
A3 The packing slips are due to EEC no later 7 days after you receive the goods, which will not be May 4, 2017, as that is the due date of your application.



QRIS/ELIGIBILITY

Q4. I believe I am a Level 2. I haven't submitted my Level 3 application or started any of the process mentioned.  Is it worth even going through this application process?
A4 No, there is no reason for you to apply. Programs that have not submitted (status of final submit, review in progress, review complete) a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017 are not eligible for the QRIS Improvement Grant. The budget language associated with these funds states that they must be directed toward programs that are “actively engaged actively engaged in efforts to achieve Level 3 and Level 4 in order to improve quality in early education and school age system of care.”

Q5. In the webinar on April 10, 2017, there was a slide that mentioned the PQ Registry. Are there any additional requirements related to the PQ Registry for this grant program? 
A5 No, there are no additional requirements related to the PQ Registry.

Q6. If we are a self-assessed level 3 program and received level 2 rating from EEC in 2012 but currently have no QRIS rating (it’s currently blank on the QRIS Program Manager) but rather just a “EEC Review Complete,” are we eligible to apply? We submitted our last application (for level 3) in January 2017.
A6 Please request your QRIS status by emailing EECQRIS@massmail.state.ma.us. Please be sure to include your EEC Program Number in the request. The deadline for this step is April 19, 2017.

Q7. I am just awaiting clarification on the item listed on page 6, item II D., that states that a program that is currently level 2 with a level 3 application opened “at any time” is eligible to apply, but with a lower priority – this is different than what was stated during the presentation.  Please let us know if our application would even be considered if we are currently level 2 with a level 3 QRIS application opened after March 1, 2017 or January 1, 2016 (?two cut off dates listed in RFR).
A7 This part of the RFR has been clarified on COMMBUYS. Programs will only be eligible if they have submitted a Level 3 QRIS application before March 1, 2017.

Q8. If applying for an after school program that is separate from your group child care but is licensed under the same program name and same program number, how do you differentiate?   We are not applying for our group child care but just for after school program.  Our program is granted level 2 by EEC and we are working to reach level 3, can we apply for this grant?
A8 Programs may apply for both the center based and the ASOST programs if they meet the eligibility criteria. Please be sure identify the program type in the Intent to Bid survey. If there are two applications for one program number, EEC will send Kaplan the program number with the letters “a” and “b” following the program number (i.e. EEC Program Numbers 123456a and 123456b).

Q9. If you’re a level 3, but have not submitted you application for level 4. Do you still qualify for this grant?
A9 Yes, all granted Level 3 programs are eligible to apply.

Q10. Do we need to tell you how many times we got the grant prior to this and the year?  If so how do we find out? I did not apply all the time but received the grant a few time over the years so I do not remember the exact years.
A10 No, you do need to indicate your grant history. EEC has records for all years of the QRIS Improvement Grant.

Q11. Is there a requirement that a program have a specific number of EEC funded children enrolled?
A11 No, there is no grant requirement related to the number of children in your program receiving EEC subsidies.

Q12. If Level 4 centers want to maintain a Level 4, we need durable goods.  Why are exempt programs and public schools being included when those that are struggling to keep the Level 4 are not eligible?  Now there isn't an incentive to keep the Level 4. Very disappointing to be left out.
A12 We commend your achievement and regret that we are unable to serve Level 4 programs with this grant. The grant is required to reflect the budget line item, which states that the grant should serve programs that are “actively engaged in efforts to achieve Level 3 and Level 4 in order to improve quality in early education and school age system of care.”

Q13. Can a program with level 2 and a draft application can ask for an exemption?
A13 Programs that have not submitted a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017 are not eligible for the QRIS Improvement Grant. Draft applications are not submitted applications.

Q14. Are there any funds for training costs or consultants?
A14 No. All QRIS Improvement Grant funding will be used to purchase durable goods.

Q15. In the past there was not enough good science items for our program. Has this been looked in to this grant?  
A15 EEC is pleased to have over 300 science and nature items available in this grant opportunity.

Q16. Is it correct that only school-based preschool programs are eligible to apply for this grant? (Eligibility Requirements page 3)
A16 No, that is not correct. All programs in the mixed-delivery system (center based, public school preschool, family child care, and afterschool/out-of-school time) may apply if they meet the grant’s eligibility requirements.

Q17. Is there grant for SACC as well?
A17 School-age child care (also known as afterschool/out-of-school time) programs may apply for the grant as long as they meet the grant’s eligibility requirements.

Q18. Why does it say on page 6, item D that a program that is QRIS level 2, can apply with a QRIS level 3 that was opened at any time?
A18 This has been corrected. The intent of this section of the RFR is to prioritize proposals based on the length of time programs were actively working on their Level 3 and Level 4 QRIS applications. This section of the RFR now reads:

Competitive priority will be provided to those applicants that:
· Have not received QRIS Improvement Grant funds through previous procurement(s) in fiscal years FY2012 through FY2016.
· Have the following QRIS status according to each program’s QRIS Summary of Application Profile from EEC’s QRIS Program Manager[footnoteRef:1][1] in the order that they’re listed: [1: [1] To view updated information on QRIS, please click on the following link: http://www.mass.gov/eec/qris. For technical assistance regarding EEC's QRIS Program Manager, please contact the EEC's Help Desk at this link: http://eoe.state.ma.us/eecsupport.aspx.
] 

· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 2 with a QRIS Level 3 application (final submit, review in process, or review complete) submitted prior to January 1, 2016;
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 3 with a QRIS Level 4 application (final submit, review in process, or review complete) submitted prior to January 1, 2016;
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 3 with a QRIS Level 4 application (final submit, review in process, or review complete) submitted at any time;
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 2 with a QRIS Level 3 application (final submit, review in process, or review complete) submitted before March 1, 2017; and 
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 3 and have not submitted a QRIS Level 4 application.

Q19. My program has had funds but I need the materials for my level 3. Am I going to have an opportunity?
A19 Please see the answer to Question 18 for eligibility criteria. Programs that have never received the grant will receive competitive priority. Prior grantees are not precluded from receiving the grant.

Q20. My program has been granted level 2 and I am actively working on level 3 by attending required trainings and gathering the necessary paperwork; I just don't have a level 3 application. Is my program eligible to apply for this grant?
A20 No. Programs that have not submitted (status of final submit, review in progress, review complete) a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017 are not eligible for the QRIS Improvement Grant at this time. 

Q21. My program is an Afterschool and I began my application on 12/27/16 I did send it in this month because of some glitching ...I was told that my program would not be able to apply, in not understanding why though/I am in level 2 on the QRIS, I would like start with the process for the level 3. Do I qualify for this grant?
A21 No. Programs that have not submitted (status of final submit, review in progress, review complete) a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017 are not eligible for the QRIS Improvement Grant at this time. 

Q22. Is there a cap for agencies that have many sites?
A22 No. All eligible programs may apply for each QRIS-rated site; there is no cap on the number of sites per agency.

Q23. If Level 4 centers want to maintain a Level 4, we need durable goods.  Why are exempt programs and public schools being included when those that are struggling to keep the Level 4 and are licensed are not eligible?  Now there isn't an incentive to keep the Level 4. Very disappointing to be left out.
A23 We commend your achievement and regret that we are unable to serve Level 4 programs with this grant. The grant is required to reflect the budget line item, which states that the grant should serve programs that are “actively engaged in efforts to achieve Level 3 and Level 4 in order to improve quality in early education and school age system of care.”

Q24. My program as a whole has been working with our QRIS consultant as we have been working towards receiving Level 3.  Most recently I started a new application for my after school program on 12/27/16.  When I finished the application which was back in January there were issues with the QRIS manager that would not allow me to submit the application with the changes that I made.  During this time I did reach out to our QRIS consultant who told me to send in a service ticket it which I did.  Also during this process our QRIS consultant came out to my two other sites for Level 3 review and we did discuss the issue once again.  However, I did not notice that the application had been fixed until the grant was released last Monday.  I did submit the application on the 4/1/17 which makes it impossible for me to apply for my program because I miss the cutoff time.  My question is if I am able to still apply for my afterschool program because I was unable to submit an application beforehand due to being unable to submit the application.
A24 No. Programs that have not submitted (status of final submit, review in progress, review complete) a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017 are not eligible for the QRIS Improvement Grant at this time. 


Q25. Is my program with a Level 2 granted, Level 3 self-assessed status eligible for the grant if the application has a “QRIS Rating Granted” status, and not in a “final submit,” “review in progress,” or “review complete” status?
A25	Yes. Programs with this status are eligible to apply as long as they self-assessed for Level 3 before March 1, 2017.

Q26. Could you please clarify the eligibility as it relates to the QRIS Level?  The instructions in the Open Grant Application is a little confusing.
A26 Programs with the following QRIS statuses may apply for the grant:
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 2 with a Level 3 QRIS application (final submit, review in process, or review complete) submitted by March 1, 2017.
· All programs granted QRIS Level 3. Statuses in this category include:
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 3 with a Level 4 QRIS application (final submit, review in process, or review complete).
· Programs that are granted QRIS Level 3 and have not submitted a Level 4 QRIS application.

Q27. Would an educator who has been granted QRIS Level 2 be able to apply?
A27 This educator would be required to have submitted a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017.

Q28. Can an educator at Granted QRIS Level2 be able to self-assess at QRIS Level 3 in order to apply for the grant?
A28 This educator would be required to have submitted a Level 3 QRIS application by March 1, 2017.

Q29. The grant specifies a March 1, 2017 deadline for the QRIS Level 3 application submission deadline.  If this is the deadline, would the EEC reconsider so that more educators can be eligible to apply?
A29 The deadline for submitted a Level 3 application is March 1, 2017. This grant was designed to support programs that have been actively working toward Level 3 and Level 4. EEC does not anticipate changing that deadline at this time.

Q30. Is it possible for level 2 providers to qualify for this grant even if they haven't self-assessed at level 3. Providers were waiting for the grant before starting the level 3 application process because they needed the funds to help them get to that level.
A30 That is understandable. The goal of this grant opportunity, however, is as defined in the budget line item language: to serve programs that are actively engaged in efforts to achieve Level 3 and Level 4. For the purposes of this grant, “actively engaged” has been defined as a program that has completed an application for level 3 by March 1, 2017.

Q31. I am an Educational Coordinator for an FCC Providers. I was wondering if you could clarify the requirements of the grant for me. I do have providers that are actively working on QRIS Level 3 and have documentation but haven’t fully submitted everything online. Does this mean they don’t qualify?
A31 That provider would have needed to submit a QRIS application by March 1, 2017 to be eligible for the grant.

Q32. Do programs with level 4 granted status not eligible to apply for this grant?
A32 Correct. Programs that are granted Level 4 are not eligible for the grant.

Q33. Please confirm that the only steps to submitting a full, timely application are the following steps:  1.Submit a Kaplan shopping cart and 2. Upload the narrative question document(s*) to Comm-Buys and submit the quote. In Comm-Buys, should anything be listed in the General, Items or other tabs?
A33 The application process has three steps:
· STEP 1: Applicants must complete an Intent to Bid, via this survey link, https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/S9M6W8J, by April 20, 2017.
· STEP 2: Applicants must submit their Kaplan online portal shopping cart in the Kaplan portal by 4:00 PM on May 4, 2017.
· STEP 3: Applicants must submit the narrative questions via COMMBUYS by 4:00 PM on May 4, 2017.
 
Q34. We appreciate that EEC has taken the time to align items to the QRIS studies. However, there are high-quality, durable goods that we need in order to advance that are not available at Kaplan or are available at Kaplanco.com (just not in the grant portal). The following are examples:
· Angeles trikes and cots (high quality compared to the brand available)
· Classroom tables (such as Nature color line) 
· Playground equipment (only 1 large playground toy available)
· Sand and water table such as the Transparent Sand and Water Table or the See Through Sensory Sand and WaterTable (the smaller profile table that is available is not high quality. The acrylic water basin cracks after 6 months of use. Replacement tubs near the cost of a new table.
· Infant care items such as the Sturdy-Chair high chairs, bouncers and swings (none of these types of items are available) 
Do you anticipate adding additional materials?
A34 All items available through this grant opportunity must be selected from the Kaplan portal. EEC does not anticipate adding more items to the Kaplan portal at this time. EEC appreciates these recommendations and acknowledges that not all durable goods needs will be met by this grant.

Kaplan adds the following information relating to guaranteeing product quality:

For items that are damaged in shipping, Kaplan needs to be contacted within 15 days and damaged items need to remain in the original packaging for carrier inspection.  Kaplan will send a replacement right away and make arrangements for the return of the damaged items.  While that is our standard policy, Kaplan recognizes that with a project of this scope, in some cases, these timelines and requirements may not be met, and we will review those instances and replace items accordingly.  

Kaplan guarantees complete satisfaction with every product purchased from us. If not completely delighted with the purchase, contact Kaplan within 30 days to arrange for the return of any unused product, and we will gladly provide the customer with a full refund, credit or exchange*.  Also, if a product purchased from Kaplan proves to be defective in normal use within one year of purchase, we will repair or replace the merchandise. Some products are also covered by extended manufacturer's warranties.

*Note from EEC: In this circumstance, Kaplan’s guarantee policy will cover an exchange, and not a credit or refund, since no money is being exchanged between programs and Kaplan.

Q35. Providers find quality of goods to be very important, especially when using grant funds to be good stewards of those funds. Additional time is spent to fix items or find replacement parts or add procedures to compensate for lower quality items. If additional materials are not added, maybe after the grant is complete, it would be helpful for EEC to survey providers related to item availability and quality?
A35 EEC will certainly take this suggestion under advisement. Thank you!


SURVEY MONKEY

Q36. Can FCC Systems complete the Intent to Bid on behalf of their affiliated FCC Educators with the educators’ information or should the FCC Educator set up her own COMMBUYS account and Do the Survey Monkey Intent to Bid on her own?
A36 EEC encourages FCC systems to help providers to establish a COMMBUYS account and do the Intent to Bid. The grant application process, however, should be driven by the provider.

Q37. How long time after filling the survey monkey to hear back from you?
A37 If eligible, you will receive a customized portal link from Kaplan within 72 business hours. If your program is not eligible, you will receive notification to that effect from EEC within 72 business hours.

Q38. Yesterday, I completed the online Intent to Bid survey for the FY 2017 QRIS Improvement Grant, Fund Code 764.  From what I understand from the RFR, once the Intent to Bid has been submitted, I will receive a link to an individualized Kaplan portal for me to use to complete the Kaplan portal shopping cart.  Unfortunately, I have not received the link yet.  I went to the Intent to Bid link and received the message that I already completed the survey.  Can you please let me know when I should be receiving the link or if there are action items that I need to do to access it?
A38 If eligible, you will receive a customized portal link from Kaplan within 72 business hours. If your program is not eligible, you will receive notification of ineligibility from EEC within 72 business hours. If you have not received one of these types of notification within 72 business hours, please contact Philip Steigman at Philip.steigman@massmail.state.ma.us.


NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

Q39. Are the directions for uploading the Narrative Questions to COMMBUYS on the COMMUBYS site?
A39 Yes, you will find the directions in COMMBUYS.

Q40. Is the only document I need to submit is the narrative questions? Due 5/4? Do I email it to EEC email and upload it in COMMBUYS?
A40 The Narrative Questions should be uploaded to COMMBUYS by 4:00 PM on May 4, 2017. Applications that are late will not be considered for funding.

Q41. How we can upload the narrative questions?
A41 The Narrative Questions should be uploaded to COMMBUYS.  Please follow the job aid provided on COMMBUYS to create a quote.

Q42. Do we send you our narrative responses by pressing the button "create quote" at the bottom of our COMMBUYS page?
A42 Yes.  You need to create a quote to upload your Narrative questions.

Q43. We are a multi-site organization with an intent to submit 6 grant applications.  We operate under 1 tax id number for all sites.  When we access COMMBUYS it is as an agency as a whole. DO we need to create 6 individual log-ins to distinguish between the individual sites or is it possible to upload the narrative 6 times with different headings to identify the sites (and if so, how do we do this).  
A43 Please upload Narrative Questions for each Program with each submission clearly marked with the Program Name and Number for each site. 

Q44. Should the program respond to narrative questions #1 and #3 as they relate to only durable goods as in question #2?  
A44 Please answer Question #1 as it broadly relates to your plans for advancing to Levels 3 or 4 of QRIS. Please answer Question #3 as it relates to how you expect this grant will affect your Environment Rating Scales scores.

Q45. Question 2 asks about overall needs for durable goods. Is this question asking about all needs, not just QRIS-specific needs? We are trying to differentiate between question #1 that asks about specific items needed and why with question #2 that asks about needs and why.
A45 Please answer Question #1 as it broadly relates to your plans for advancing to Levels 3 or 4 of QRIS. Question #2 is about your program needs as they specifically relate to material (durable) goods.

Q46. Could copying our up-to-date Continuous Quality Improvement Plan (CQIP) be a thorough, appropriate response format to the 2nd and 3rd questions in Question #1? The question seems to be asking all the questions that our CQIP covers. The first part of Question #1 would be responded to in narrative format first. 
A46 You’re welcome to answer these narrative questions in the manner you find most appropriate. You must be able to format the answers for use in COMMBUYS. Please do not attempt to upload your full CQIP. 

Q47. For programs with one CommBuys account (one tax ID#) and multiple programs apply for the grant? Should they upload multiple narrative question response documents, clearly marked with the program #? According to CommBuys, this is an EEC question.
A47 Yes.  Please upload Narrative Questions for each Program clearly marked with the Program Name and Number. Please see the answer to Question 43 for further clarification.


KAPLAN

Q48. Do you anticipate Kaplan having enough quantity/ variety of materials for all programs?  We already see low quantities (i.e. only one option for a category).
A48 EEC does anticipate having enough quantity of materials to serve all programs. EEC worked with Kaplan to select the more than 2,000 items that meet EEC licensing regulations, are recommended by our research team, and are available for delivery. 

Q49. Is the 10,000 going to be spent only on goods or are there cash to educators?
A49 All QRIS Improvement Grant funding will be used to purchase durable goods from Kaplan, there will be no cash provided to educators

Q50. What happens if we need something to support our progress in the ECERS/ITERS that Kaplan sells but is not accessible in the Kaplan grant portal?  (For example, classroom storage cabinet with doors.)
A50 Only items that are in the Kaplan grant portal are available in this grant opportunity. EEC worked with Kaplan to select the more than 2,000 items that meet EEC licensing regulations, are recommended by our licensing and research teams, and are available for delivery.

Q51. Will there be any opportunity to order other items from Kaplan? Some important items that are holding us back from going to level 4 are not included in the portal.
A51 EEC does not anticipate adding more items to the Kaplan portal. EEC worked with Kaplan to select the more than 2,000 items that meet EEC licensing regulations, are recommended by our licensing and research teams, and are available for delivery.

Q52. There are many items we are requesting that are not available through Kaplan this time around.  Items such as cribs, cots and climbers to name a few.  Is there a possibility of more items being added?
A52 EEC does not anticipate adding more items to the Kaplan portal. EEC worked with Kaplan to select the more than 2,000 items that meet EEC licensing regulations, are recommended by our licensing and research teams, and are available for delivery.

Q53. If I wanted Kaplan to ship the goods after June 16th would that be allowed. I know it has to be deliver by June 30th.  I have graduation on June 16th and do not want boxes all over before that day.
A53 EEC can only guarantee that selected grantees will receive their items on or before June 30, 2017. EEC cannot guarantee that items will be received by June 16, 2017.

Q54. What is the process for "submitting a Kaplan shopping cart"? The instructions on the home page of the portal mention United Way so we aren't sure if they are current. 
A54 Applicants must finalize their selected list of goods in their portal shopping cart by May 4, 2017. Kaplan is available to assist in submitting this final list. We apologize for the United Way email address on the portal, and we have removed it.

WEBINAR

Q55. Is all this information available to us after the webinar online?
A55 The link to the Webinar is posted in COMMBUYS. The powerpoint presentation is in the handout section of the Webinar.  You may access the webinar by clicking this link:  WEBINAR -- FY 2017 QRIS IMPROVEMENT GRANT - APRIL 10, 2017
[bookmark: _GoBack]

Q56. Is listening to this webinar or recording a requirement to submit?
A56 The Webinar is not a requirement for grant submission.  The webinar is offered for informational purposes only.

Q57. Can webinars be scheduled around 1:00 pm so that family child care educators will be able to participate and get the information they need to successfully apply for the grant? The current scheduled time on the webinar is not convenient for educators who are busy taking care of children during the scheduled time.
A57 EEC accommodates all with regards to our grant Webinars by recording and posting the Webinars for your viewing at any time you are available. You may access the webinar by clicking this link:  WEBINAR -- FY 2017 QRIS IMPROVEMENT GRANT - APRIL 10, 2017

Q58. I am writing on behalf of our system educators. Will there be another informational webinar available for FCC Educators who are unable to participate during the busiest time of their day (9:30-11:00 am) and want to be included?
A58 EEC accommodates all with regards to our grant Webinars by recording and posting the Webinars for your viewing at any time you are available.  You may access the webinar by clicking this link:  WEBINAR -- FY 2017 QRIS IMPROVEMENT GRANT - APRIL 10, 2017 
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